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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
FOR MRF DEVELOPMENT/OPERATION SERVICES FOR THE 
LUCAS COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

 
ADDENDUM #2: Released 3-9-12 

 
Questions and Responses for Proposed Vendors -  
 

1. The district has laid out a timeline as follows: RFP submittal on February 29, 2012 and servicing volume 
on December 15, 2012.  In order to provide the District and the City with the best possible proposal we 
request that the due date for submittal be extended until March 28, 2012. It would be very difficult to 
investigate permitting and zoning for potential new sites, develop quotes and design layouts for 
processing equipment, develop lead times for equipment delivery, develop construction timeliness, etc., 
within the current submittal deadline. 

 
Response: The RFP submittal date has been revised to April 11, 2012 

 
2. What process will the District use to address written questions from potential vendors? Will the 

questions by answered as submitted (with distribution to all registered potential vendors) or collected 
and held until the February 22 due date and answered in a single response? 

 
Response: Questions will be listed with a response and issued as an addendum and posted 
under Services on this web link: http://www.co.lucas.oh.us/bids.aspx 
 

3. What is the timeline from the submittal due date until Dec 15?  Selection, Approval, Negotiations, 
Contract Award, Contract Signing?  

 
Response: Vendors are requested to provide timelines based on the following: 
April 11, 2012 - Receipt of proposals 
April, 2012 – Vendors will be evaluated for possible interviews in April & May 
May/June, 2012 – City and District agreement will be prepared as needed   
June, 2012 – Vendor will be selected for negotiations with an award by June 29 
July, 2012 – Contract will be signed  

 
4. Will potential vendors have an opportunity to inspect the facility? The RFP is silent on this question and 

vendors are being asked to include the cost of potential upgrades in their pricing. Does the District have 
upgrades in mind or are they looking for recommendations? It’s difficult to envision how an offeror will 
make recommendations without first inspecting the facility. 

 
Response: Potential vendors may inspect the Matzinger Rd property (owned by the District & 
the Albion St property owned by the City) and the District would entertain recommendations for 
upgrades by the vendor in order to achieve the desired results of the MRF. 

 
5. Will the District release files, engineering plans and/or blueprints in electronic form of the site, existing 

structures, land permits, existing storm water plans/guidelines and soil tests to potential vendors for the 
Matzinger Road site so that RFP formulations can be fully complete?  What is the available site square 
footage for vendors to utilize safely and productively?  What is the District’s long term plan for its own 
use of the site? 
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Response: Available site information is attached as Addendum 2 - Exhibit A, B & C.  Vendors 
shall provide details regarding their plans to use any desired facility (1011 Matzinger, 2411 
Albion or other location).  The District uses the Matzinger Rd facility as its location for the 
District’s offices.  The District and Fondessy Enterprises have an agreement per Attachment D 
of the Request for Proposal for District recyclables and the stated term ends December 31, 2014.  
Any use conflicting with this agreement shall be mutually agreed with the District and Fondessy 
Enterprises.  The agreement also has an “out clause” to take commingle containers to another 
processor upon 30 days notice.  There is no such clause for commingled fiber. 

 
6. Page 6 of the RFP indicates that there are four sets of technical evaluation points (e.g., Qualifications). 

Yet, there are more than 4 sections in the requested technical proposal outline (starts on page 9) and 
some technical evaluation points appear to cover more than one technical proposal outline section. For 
example, the Qualifications points arguably cover both section 2 (Vendor Qualifications and Capacity) 
and section 5 (Resumes). How does the District propose to allocate points between multiple technical 
proposal sections? 

 
Response: Page 6 of the RFP will be the basis for points in Stage 1.  The items listed on page 9 
will be broken down to fit in one of the four sections where points will be awarded as follows: 
 

Qualifications - Vendor Qualifications and Capacity     
 Experience Doing Similar Work - Experience Summary    

References for Similar Work – References and Resumes   
Understanding of Project/District – Project Understanding, Approach, Technical Proposal 
and activity schedules  

 
7. What is the District’s working timeline from proposal submission (February 29th), to the desired starting 

date (December 15th)?  Pricing is valid for 120 days, which is late June.  Does the District intend to 
make an award decision and have a resolution approved by the Board of Commissioners by then? 

 
Response: The new proposal submission date is April 11 and the Vendor shall provide a 
timeline based on the response to question 3 above.  The District intends to make an award 
within 120 days. 

 
8. The RFP states on page 8 that the Board of Commissioners will make the award by resolution based 

on the Maximum Points earned. What does this process entail in Lucas County?  Is the vote required 
unanimous or a simple majority (or something else)?  Is the process pro forma (i.e. they’re simply 
validating the staff recommendation), or will the board actually vote their positions on the staff 
recommendation? 

 
Response: Action will be taken by the Board of Commissioners in the form of a resolution with 
approval required by a majority of the Board.  The Board will act on a recommendation from 
District staff. 

 
9. Will the City be signing a contract binding its volume to this project or the resulting contract? 
 

Response: The City and District will have an agreement to ensure recycling volumes from the 
collection of the City’s single stream recycling as long as the proposal is in the City’s best 
interest. 

 
10. Section 3 “Experience Summary” on page 13 reads as follows: 
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“In this section, the prospective Vendor should include that information it deems appropriate to 
convince the District that it has sufficient direct experience, either with the District and its programs 
or with programs operated within the District by communities and/or other service providers such 
that the Vendor understands the specific program management requirements, organizational 
challenges and working methods used by the District, its communities and its operating partners in 
order to meet the District’s program objectives during the period of service. The response to this 
section shall include:” 

 
Our interpretation of this language suggests that direct experience with the District – or communities 
within the District – in programs other than recycling and/ or solid waste management may qualify 
prospective vendors without appropriate experience as responsive to this solicitation.  Specifically, the 
use of the word "or" seems to indicate that it is not necessary for potential vendors to have any 
experience designing, building, or operating a single stream processing facility to be qualified for this 
project/contract.  In order to remove this ambiguity, we propose that the RFP language be modified as 
follows:  

 
“In this section, the prospective Vendor should include information it deems appropriate to convince the 
District that it has sufficient direct experience with single-stream recycling programs of similar scope 
and size to this project such that the Vendor understands the specific program management 
requirements, organizational challenges and working methods used by the District, its communities and 
its operating partners in order to meet the District’s program objectives during the period of service. The 
response to this section shall include:” 

 
Response: Stage 1 details the four categories where points may be earned.  With the emphasis 
of this RFP and the need to provide single stream recycling, Vendors should be clear in 
providing such response to ensure experience and references for similar work.   

 
11. Given the allotted site acreage at Matzinger Road, it appears to us that keeping the current dual-stream 

operations on-site will impede the development of a full-fledged single-stream MRF. How does the 
District envision prospective vendors to propose the construction of a new single-stream MRF at 
Matzinger Road and have the current supplier continue processing dual-stream material on site?  
Vendors will be hard pressed to construct a new facility within the existing footprint, handle higher 
volume logistics, supply another building for the housing of District vehicles, and work around the 
existing structure that the current supplier is utilizing.   

 
Response: Proposed Vendors will need to review the existing processing agreement and 
coordinate efforts and/or offer alternatives for use of the Matzinger Road facility through the 
term of the existing agreement (December 31, 2014). 

 
12. Please provide the current electrical layout, voltage, and amperage design for the Matzinger Road site.  

Will the current system be able to support a new single-stream MRF operation in addition to the existing 
supplier’s fiber processing operations?  

 
Response: Site information is provided in Addendum 2 - Exhibit A, B & C as attached to this 
document.  Additional information may be obtained by conducting a site visit to investigate 
existing electrical components.   

 
13. The RFP requests pricing for District bottles and can volume and City single-stream volume. What is 

the District’s strategic plan to convert to single-stream, or, are vendors required to base single-stream 
construction based off of actual volumes currently established by the City?  Are vendors expected to 
take into consideration dual-stream fiber pricing, or is it the District’s assumption that said fiber will be 
rolled-up under single-stream volume as of January 1, 2015? 
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Response: The volumes from the City and District are shown in the RFP.  Vendors may provide 
alternatives for future continuation of the District’s dual stream (beyond December 31, 2014) vs. 
conversion from the District’s dual stream to single stream.  Any future change from the 
District’s current dual stream collection will need to be in the best interest of the District.  

 
14. Page 4, Section III, Item 3 Is the “My Republic Rewards” program operating and will the District provide 

vendors with data from the program from its inception to current date and forecast strategies? 
 

Response: The City’s “My Republic Rewards” program for the City has been in place since 
September 1, 2011.  As of January, 2012, there were approximately 24,000 households out of 
approx. 95,500 signed up for the program. 

 
15. Page 16, Section X, Item 5: does the District envision vendors to purchase or lease property in the 

District (other than the Matzinger site), build an operable facility that will accommodate the District’s 
needs, and walk away from the facility and site should they be unsuccessful in retaining the contract 
after the initial 10-year term?  The current language suggests that the site, facility, and equipment will 
become the property of the District.  Will the District take over the leasing arrangements set forth with 
the respondent’s landlord?  Will the District provide funding/capital at fair market value for the purchase 
of the site, facility, and equipment if the site and facility is owned by the respondent? 

 
Response: Proposed Vendors shall provide options for the District to consider and ownership 
of the facility and equipment would need to revert to the District for subsequent contracts 
should the selected Vendor not retain the contract beyond the initial term or extensions thereof.  
Any leasing arrangements taken over by the District would need to be approved by the District.  
The District and City are not planning to provide funding/capital for the MRF development, 
however, there may be opportunities for the successful proposer to seek state funded grant 
and/or loan funds as a joint private/public partnership when such opportunities are identified. 

 
16. It is stated in several areas of the RFP that “host tons” may be placed into the awarded facility. Is the 

District stating that they have “other” outside volume on the table that will become part of the District’s 
total portfolio? Have there been any discussions with surrounding counties and/or local municipalities to 
propose agreements to divert tonnage to the new facility upon commencement of operations?  If so, will 
the District elaborate? As detailed in the RFP, approximately 23,200 tons will be delivered to the 
successful vendor.  Could the District clarify what portion of the 25,000 to 40,000 tons referenced in the 
RFP is projected as growth resulting from the rewards program versus anticipated host volume? 
  
Response: The District has no other host tons allocated or dedicated at this time.  The proposal 
pricing form is for proposed Vendors to show pricing based on assumed host tons for 
calculation purposes.  The vast majority of the projected growth of tons is estimated to come 
from increased recycling; however, it may also include other tons that the Vendor brings to the 
facility.  
 

17. In the Fondessy Agreement – Page 19 of 22,  “Exhibit B,” “Financial Arrangement”:   Are there any 
articles or exhibits detailing the financial arrangements of the “Commingle Container Recycling” 
program between Fondessy and the District?  Please provide the current deal structure. 
 
Response: The commingled container recycling is detailed in the District/Fondessy agreement.  
Basically, it is processed at no cost to the District and there is a 30-day out clause to allow the 
District to take to another facility.  As a result of the proposals, the commingled containers may 
be processed at the new material recovery facility. 
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18. Page 5, item 7: ‘The acceptable contamination levels (out-throws) shall be less than 6%’. Can you 
explain this? It looks more like a possible market specification. Is this the residue measurement for the 
inbound materials? 

 
Response: The incoming recycling material should be assumed to contain less than 6% trash 
and other prohibited materials.  Yes, this is for inbound materials. 
 

19. Is there a characterization (breakdown) for the relative percentages of materials by category (ONP, 
OCC, PET, etc)? 
 
Response: Nothing beyond what is presented in the RFP 
 

20. Page 6: Will questions be received after February 22 given the extension for the submittal date? 
 
Response: No formal question/response format is anticipated 

21. Page 8, Item VII: We see that market conditions for the periods January 2010 through December, 2011 
are to be submitted. Will these be the prices (submitted by proposers) used in the evaluation? Have you 
considered using baseline pricing indicated by public indexes (Official Board Markets, Waste and 
Recycling News, etc) in order to level the pricing comparison? 

 
Response: Assuming the proposed agreement was in place, we are asking proposed vendors to 
calculate costs/net revenues to the District/City for the 2010 and 2011 period based on the 
premise of the new proposal  

 
22. Page 16, item 9: Please clarify the requirement for ‘an offer of recognition to the Union…”. Does this 

condition apply to any possible employees at the Matzinger Road location or is the intent to also apply 
at the vendor’s off-site location as well? 
 
Response: This would apply to any location proposed for the materials recovery facility. 

23. Page 42, Part B: Can a proposer submit multiple options (B.1 – B.4)? If so, can they be submitted 
together  or do they need to be submitted as separate ‘Pricing Proposal’ envelopes (see page 14)? 

 
Response: Vendor may submit multiple options together in one proposal but must submit a 
separate “Revenue Share and Comments Example” (see page 43) for each respective option.  

 

 

 

SEE NEXT PAGE 
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24.   

Section Request for Clarifications and Modifications  

General 

1. Is the district committing all its volume to this RFP for the 
term? 

a. Paper? 
b. Rigid Containers?    

2. If the answer is no, what District volume is being committed?   
a. Paper? 
b. Rigid Containers?    

3. If the answer is yes, can the district provide a history of the 
volume it is committing over the past 5 years, by both paper 
mad mixed containers and when those volumes will begin 
flowing into the new facility?   
See responses # 13 and #17 

4. Exclusive of the City Toledo agreement with ReCommunity, 
does the district have a contract with a processor for rigid 
containers?   

a. Whom?  
b. Where does it deliver such tons?   
c. If yes, for how long?   
d. When will the agreement be over?  
e. Can the respondents receive a copy of that 

contract?  
f.  If not, in what form and to whom does the District 

takes its material?  Does the district utilize the 
same pricing for rigid containers as Toledo?  

g. If material is source separated, to whom does the 
material go? 
See response # 17 

5. If the district has an agreement with the City of Toledo, will the 
District please share that agreement for delivery of City of 
Toledo tons? 

a. Is there a written commitment for Toledo to use 
such a facility?  If not what happens if the City does 
not like the respondent’s price?   

b. If not, how is the vendor protected if both the 
source of District paper and the city tons are at 
risk?  
See response # 9 

 

1. Can the respondents be deemed responsive and use the existing 
building to transfer? 

a. Short term during construction? 
b. Long term?  

See response # 5 

Matzinger Building 
and Grounds 

1. How will the vendor work with the existing vendor on site?   
2. How can the vendor modify the building while the current 

vendor is in operation?    
See response #5 
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25.    
 
 3, 16, 
17, Form 
9 - p41 

Scope of Work / 
Services 

o QUESTION: What does “or other location” mean? Can City unilaterally require services at 
another site?  
The vendor may propose an alternate location (other than Matzinger Rd.) to receive and 
process recycling materials. 

o QUESTION: District expects to own alternate facility at end of ten (10) year term of 
Contract? 
See response #15. 

 Page 17, Paragraph 13, indicates “should a second site in the City of Toledo be used for these 
purposes, all costs will be borne by the selected Vendor and the volume will not be detrimental to the 
collection of materials in this contract.” 
o QUESTION: Does this mean, if Vendor proposes its own alternate site, Vendor then has to 

give priority at its own site to City / District materials? 
Yes 

 Page 41, Form 9 - All tip fees and revenue sharing must be for delivery to Facility or to the RTF 
(Recyclables Transfer Facility) tipping floor 
o QUESTION: Does the RTF refer to the alternate facility that may be proposed by Vendor? 

Yes 
 

3 , 4-5 Specifications o QUESTION: What does give priority mean? Does it mean host recyclables cannot be 
processed until City / District recyclables are processed? 
In the event there is competition for processing capacity, City/District recyclables shall be 
first priority. 

o QUESTION: Are certain capital improvements required, or at discretion of Vendor? 
The RFP does not dictate specific required improvements. 

 

4, 14, 17, 
Form 9 – 
p 41 

Bid Pricing (General) o QUESTION: Are Republic and Fondessy the only applicable agreements as to “current 
agreements” that might be in conflict? 
Republic will continue to deliver Toledo materials.  The ReCommunity can be terminated as 
noted in the agreement 
QUESTION: Aren’t these being terminated in favor of Vendor’s winning proposal? 
No, Republic will continue agreement to collect Toledo material & see response #5 

 Paragraph 1., Pricing Document, subparagraph A, indicates “verification of those revenues and/or 
market values” as to specific business methods for determining revenues. 
o QUESTION: What types of verification are acceptable? 

Types of verification would be dictated by the proposer’s method of establishing the value 
of each respective commodity as well as the revenue sharing formula.  

 Paragraph 11., page 17, indicates “Vendors shall indicate how revenue/expenses are verified, and how 
City / District are assured of maximizing revenue”. Must indicate detailed information as to risks to 
Vendor / City / District, Vendor expect to secure necessary financing for any improvement, and 
proposed floor, trigger, ceiling and/or formula pricing through OBM-Chicago yellow sheet or other 
acceptable method 
o QUESTION: What types of verification are acceptable? 

See previous response. 
o QUESTION / Is District open to alternate indices, as it appears from the above language that 

District is open to alternate indices? 
Yes. The District will review and evaluate the proposer’s method for establishing 
commodity values and select that which is deemed to be in the best interest of the District.  

6 Bid Evaluation 
Factors 

o QUESTION: Paragraph VIII, first paragraph, states three (3) copies, but subsequent 
paragraph indicates one (1) original and two (2) copies – which is it? 
One original, two copies and one copy on electronic media in a .pdf file format. 
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8, 14 Bid Pricing (Specific) o QUESTION: Are two separate checks / revenue streams required? 
The proposal does not require two separate checks 

 Official Board Markets (Chicago) indicated as index 
o QUESTION: Is this index acceptable? 

Yes 

 Paragraph 1., Pricing Document, subparagraph C, indicates “verification of those revenues and/or 
market values” as to specific business methods for determining revenues. 
o QUESTION: What types of verification are acceptable? 

The District will review and evaluate the proposer’s method for establishing commodity 
values and select that which is deemed to be in the best interest of the District. 

10 INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS 

o QUESTION: Is professional liability insurance really necessary? 
Yes, insurance is required 

o QUESTION: Is professional liability insurance solely applicable to the professional services 
under the (architects, engineers, et al.) capital improvements project(s) or to cover the 
whole term of the contract? If for whole term, why? 
Proposers can propose anticipated insurance requirements and terms 

10 Bid / Contract 
Documents 

 Form 3 – No Findings for Recovery Affidavit – must affirm that bidder has no “unresolved finding for 
recovery from the State Auditor per Ohio Revised Code Section 9.24” 
o QUESTION:  Does this merely mean you can’t be shown to owe the State of Ohio money? 

This would be determined by the Office of the State Auditor.  

10, 12 Indemnity and Hold 
Harmless 

 Paragraph 6b, Indemnity, 2 NON PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY, appears to have different 
indemnity than that indicated on page 10 
o QUESTION: Which indemnity applies, or is this subject to negotiation with Vendor? 

All contract terms must be deemed mutually acceptable to all signatories.  

16, 26 Employees / 
Qualifications / Audits 

o QUESTION: Does Bidder have to unionize all employees to be employed at Facility, or all 
employees of Bidder? 
Proposer is expected to extend an offer of recognition, as stated on page 16, Paragraph 9.  

 Form 5, Best Bid Criteria Form – Question 2 indicates “Please detail the continuity of the 
bidder’s workforce.” 
o QUESTION: Does this mean Bidder should indicate the lack of transience in Bidder’s 

workforce? 
This would help detail continuity of Bidder’s workforce 
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26. Page 3 of 43, Item I, 1st paragraph: This item alludes to the need to be able to handle the transition of 
the current Republic Services single stream recyclables contract to the new facility. Question: Since the 
term of the ReCommunity contract with the City of Toledo runs through July 5, 2013, unless terminated 
by the City at any time with the giving of 90 days notice, is that the intent of the District, which will then 
allow the December 15, 2012 start date of this new RFP term to commence? 

 
Response: Yes, the existing contract between the City of Toledo and ReCommunity can be 
terminated by terms of the agreement.  Republic will continue to deliver the materials. 

 
27. Page 3 of 43 –  I, paragraph 1 mentions an existing agreement with Republic Services.  The agreement 

referenced in Attachment A is between the City of Toledo and ReCommunity.  Question:  Is there 
another agreement that we should be aware of? 
 
Response: The District has an agreement with Republic Services for the collection of the City of 
Toledo’s curbside trash and recyclables (See Addendum 2 - Exhibit D).  This agreement will 
remain in place and allows for the delivery of the Toledo recyclable materials to the new material 
recovery facility in Toledo.  Attachment D refers to the Fondessy Enterprises agreement. 

 
28. General Question: Which contracts are currently in place that impact the implementation of responses 

to this solicitation, and why has the December 15, 2012 start date of this RFP’s opportunity services 

been selected? 

Response: Agreements are noted in the RFP.  December 15, 2012 was selected as the target 

start date. Vendor may choose to propose alternatives with a transition plan. 

29. Page 3 of 43, Item I third paragraph: The first sentence begins with “This RFP covers.....” does not list 

commingled paper from the District, only single stream from the City and commingled cans and bottles 

from the District. Question: How will the commingled fiber (paper) from the District be handled and 

recycled? 

 

Response: District fiber stream is under contract with Fondessy Enterprises thru December 31, 

2014.  See response #5. 

 

30. Page 3 of 43, Item I third paragraph: The first sentence ends with the phrase “...and potential host 

recyclables”. Question: What is the actual intent of that phrase? 

 

Response: See response #16 

 

31. Page 3 of 43, Item I third paragraph: The next to last sentence indicates the City of Toledo has a 

collection agreement with a private hauler. Question: What is the initial term of that agreement, when 

will it expire, and are extensions possible. Can a copy of that agreement be made available as part of 

Addendum to this RFP? 

 

Response: The District has a separate agreement with the City and another separate collection 

services agreement with Republic Services (September 1, 2011 through August 31, 2016).  See 

Addendum 2 – Exhibit D.  NOTE:  Attachment A of the RFP refers to the ReCommunity and 

Toledo agreement, not Republic Services.  
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32. Page 3 of 43 – I, The three components of the RFP as stated herein do not include commingled fiber 

from the District.  However, various sections of the RFP do identify the commingled fiber. Question:  

Why is this not part of the RFP? 

 

Response: District fiber stream is under contract with Fondessy Enterprises thru December 31, 

2014. 

 
33. Page 4 of 43 – Section III 1.0   The hours of operations are stated as Sun-Sat:  4 am to 2 pm.  

Question:  Is this the current facility hours, and does the site need to be manned during these hours or 
just available for delivery of recyclables? 
 
Response: Dependent on vendor proposal. 

 
34.  Page 4 of 43, Item III, District responsibilities – Item 1 indicates that “…, all District collected recyclable 

material to the site.” Question: Why is this not what is stated on Page 3 of 43, Item I third paragraph 
 

Response: District fiber stream is delivered to Matzinger Rd under contract with Fondessy 
Enterprises thru December 31, 2014. 

 

35. Page 4 of 43, Item IV, Project Scope and Term – Item 1 indicates “Effective no later than December 15, 

2012.....” Question: How can the new contractor access the Matzinger site to make potential 

equipment/design changes so as to start December 15, 2012 with another operating firm on-site? 

 

Response: See response #5 

 

36. Page 4 of 43, under District Responsibilities:  25,000 to 40,000 tons/yr is a huge tonnage variation 

presented on the part of the District.  Absent a guaranteed tonnage, the Vendor is assuming a huge risk 

in regards to capital investment and O & M costs. Question: What assurance does a Vendor have in 

regards to guaranteed tonnage from the District that that Vendor will actually receive?   

 

Response: See response #16 

37. Page 4 of 43, under Project Scope and Term:  If the District is asking Vendor to assume responsibility 

for District operations no later than December 15th of this year and up to 10-years thereafter, when is 

the District, and the City of Toledo, committing to authorize the Start Work Date for the selected 

vendor?  Since Vendors are asked to assume responsibility for “operating” the District’s recycling facility 

(ies), are they to assume that keys to the facility are essentially provided them and, at that point, all 

maintenance costs, utility costs, property taxes, supplies, etc. then become Vendor’s responsibilities?  

Clarify what, if any, financial responsibility remains with the District. 

 

Response: See response #5 

 

38. Page 4 of 43, under Project Scope and Term:  The contract with Fondessy expires at the end of 2014. 

Questions:  

a. What criteria will the District use to determine whether or not to extend the Fondessy contract?   

b. How will that affect the vendor selected from this solicitation?   
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Response: See response # 13 

 

39. Page 5 of 43, Item IV, Project Scope and Term, Point 7. Bullet Point No. 1 --- Question: How can the 

processor guarantee the “out-throws” at less than 6% when they are subject to the level of 

contaminants in the delivered materials which the vendor does not control?  

Response: 6% represents estimated trash and other prohibited materials to account for. 

40. Page 5 of 43, Item IV, Project Scope and Term, Point 7. Bullet Point No. 3 --- Question: As used herein, 

how will “optional alternatives” actually be evaluated in the selection process? 

 

Response: The District will review alternatives and act in a manner deemed to be in the best 

interest of the District.  

 

41. Page 5 of 43, Item IV, Project Scope and Term, Proposed Contract Term --- Question: Since millions of 

dollars could be expensed in a new system for either the Matzinger Road site upgrades or an alternate 

site as allowed in the RFP, what is the actual contractual mechanism that the District will employ for 

protection of payment for the contractors financing of these new assets? For example, allowance of a 

premature termination notice by the District, without cause before the end of the term [like you appear 

to have in the current contract with ReCommunity], would be a serious issue, unless payment of the 

remaining debt by the District was included as part of the contract. 

 

Response: The final agreement shall include expressed terms for termination to the satisfaction 

of both parties. 

 

42. Page 5 of 43, Item IV, Project Scope and Term, Proposed Contract Term --- Oftentimes, a selection 

without defined contract terms and conditions leads to extended time for negotiations or changes in the 

original proposal because of different opinions and contractual obligations that can or cannot be 

entered into. Question: Why is a Draft Service Agreement for all the Vendors to respond to in their 

proposals not part of this RFP for a 10-year contract? 

 

Response: The District will fashion an agreement with the successful proposer, with terms and 

conditions that are mutually acceptable to all parties.  

 

43. Page 5 of 43 – Item 4 if the site and equipment at 1011 Matzinger Road is available for use, but 

Fondessy Enterprises is on site and currently renting the equipment. Question:  How is it to be used or 

what space is available for unqualified use for the Vendor under this RFP process? 

 

Response: See response #11 

 

44. Page 6 of 43, Item V, notes in Bold, the last day that “....written questions and clarification requests....” 

can be received as February 22, 2012. Nowhere in the RFP does it say the turnaround for responses 

by the District to submitted question. It could be that several critical questions impacting the final 

proposal pricing are asked on February 22, and proposals are due shortly thereafter on February 29. 
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Question: Regardless of when questions are received by the District, can a specific turnaround date for 

District responses be established that provides enough time after receipt by the prospective proposers 

(actually the date through your posting on your website is presumed the process) to be considered in 

our RFP response proposal? 

 

Response: See response # 1 and #2 
 

45. Page 6 of 43, Item VI, presents your Stage 1 and Stage 2 evaluation process. Obviously, getting 

enough points in Stage 1 is the crucial first step to even be considered in Stage 2. Based on your rating 

process, getting at least 55 points is critical.  Forty of the points are based on the Vendors 

qualifications, experience and references. Obviously, large national solid waste firms use third-party 

designers; they do not manufacture the equipment and they are not general contractors. Hence, while 

they may have many contracts, they also assemble a team for each given project. This just might not 

be as noticeable, as their size tends to overshadow the actual subcontractors employed. Oftentimes, 

the large waste firms even subcontract out the hauling services to local and less-expensive truckers. 

Typically their proposals say little about their actual subcontractors. However, a local firm that has a 

great long-term business interest in the community will tend to clearly add qualified and experienced 

subcontractors to help provide them project consulting, detailed design information, a local building 

contractor, and equipment design/manufacturing and installations. Such local entities tend to be more 

fully described within a small regional vendor’s proposal. Question: How will the vendor’s additional 

team members, that is, the prime vendor’s subcontractors, as described above, be specifically 

considered in each of your four evaluation categories and the points awarded in Stage 1?    

 

Response: See response # 6 and #10 

 

46. Page 6 of 43, Item VI notes that Qualifications will get 20 Maximum Points. Since 20 of 70 points is 

Qualifications based, and a low score due to the evaluation process used can put you below 55 points 

and deemed not qualified for Stage 2, understanding the evaluation process more clearly going into the 

proposal writing, and organization of the proposal response, is very important to the vendors. Question: 

Since this is not the District’s first solicitation, what has been your typical style of “points awarded” in 

this specific area based on your other proposal evaluations. For example, will any and all proposers 

associated with more than 5 MRF’s get all 20 points? Will the firm associated with the most MRF’s get 

20 points, while another vendor with only has half as many receive only 10 points, even if more than 5 

MRF’s, for example. Understanding your basis of award will help in the proposal preparation process so 

as to clearly identify your most important issues. 

 

Response: See response # 6 and #10 

 

47. Page 6 of 43, under Evaluation of Responses:  If the District retains the right to negotiate with more 

than one Vendor, does the District retain the right to split up the work, i.e. could more than one vendor 

be selected to handle the recyclables generated? 

 

Response: Yes, if deemed to be in the best interest of District/City. 
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48. Page 8 of 43, under Compensation:  Is it the District’s intent that vendors supply pricing for an unknown 

quantity of dual-stream recyclables, single-stream recyclables, drop-off center recyclables and 

recyclables from future sources based on one single industry market indicator---the Yellow Sheet 

Official Board Market report?  Tying pricing to this report puts considerable risk on vendor since neither 

the percentage of materials covered by such report has been identified by District, nor has anything 

been provided the vendor to accurately estimate, given the RFP’s scant discussion on year-to-year 

recycling volumes expected in the future. 

 

Response: See response #16 and “Revenue share and Comments example” on page 43 of 43.  

 

49. Page 8 of 43 – Question:  When will the award / contracts be signed to start (for designing and ordering 

of equipment)?  This is critical since there is a definitive date of Dec 15, 2012 for accepting material. 

 

Response: See response #7.  

 

50. Page 13 of 43, under Project Understanding:  How are vendors to supply an Activity Schedule without 

knowing when the Start Work date will be, and what tonnage will be made available? 

 

Response: See response #7 and Vendors may consider providing a gant chart with project 

milestones. 

  

51. Page 14 of 43 – Pricing proposal envelope:  Question: of the assigned 30 evaluation points for the 

pricing document, what points will be assigned to each of the items in 1 A-H? 

 

Response: The District suggests that the proposal address each point with sufficient clarity in 

order to be clearly understood and evaluated.  

 

52. There is no pre-proposal meeting noted in the RFP, which usually would include a detailed tour of the 

Matzinger facility. Question: How do prospective vendors formally request, and obtain, such a detailed 

tour led by District staff? Getting familiar with the existing equipment is noted on Page 16 of 43 Item 2, 

but since a competitor is now operating same under a multi-year agreement, this is not the ideal 

situation to approach for touring or questioning. 

 

Response: See response #11 and #12. Contact Christopher Pizza at 419-213-2235 or email at 

cpizza@co.lucas.oh.us in order to arrange a site visit.  

 

53. There are no drawings or site information provided in the RFP relative to the Matzinger facility. 

Question: How do prospective vendors formally request, and obtain, site drawings, utility information 

and as-built equipment layouts of the existing Matzinger location? If from the District or the City, 

consider this item a formal request for same. 

 

Response: See response #12 

 

54. Re: RFP copy of the complete Fondessy Agreement. Question: Could you please confirm that within 

the 22 numbered pages of this agreement, which the signature page currently numbered Page 9 of 21 

mailto:cpizza@co.lucas.oh.us


14 

should actually be numbered 10 of 22 and thus no additional pages are part of the final agreement, but 

rather just a page numbering issue? 

 

Response: Attachment D as referenced in the RFP includes the components of the Fondessy 

agreement. 

 

55. Page 16 of 43 Item 9 at top of page: Question: Since neither the ReCommunity nor the Fondessy 

agreements mention the requirements for a Union, why is this Union recognition a requirement for the 

operation of the MRF under this particular contract with the District? 

 

Response: Vendors shall extend an offer of recognition to the union as noted in the RFP. 

 

56.  Page 16 of 43 Item 9 at top of page: Question: Since the District is familiar with this Union, can the 

District provide a complete copy of the local Union (AFSCME) agreement, including rates, as part of an 

Addendum?  

 

Response: New contract is subject to negotiation. 

 

57. Page 16 of 43, Section IX. Item 9 at top of page: What other union-related issues will the District 

mandate as part of this contract since the Item 9 is operations-related and nothing is stated about 

construction or transportation labor? 

 

Response: Vendors may propose alternatives as Item 9 is in reference to the operation of the 

MRF. 

 

58. Page 16 of 43 – Section X, Item 1 Question:  If the plan is to utilize a portion of the facility at 1011 

Matzinger Road, please explain what is available that will not be in conflict with the current 

agreements? Also, please explain how shared expenses (utilities) will be determined. 

 

Response: See response #5 

 

59. Page 16 of 43, Section X. Item 5 discusses other site use and ensuing “....ownership of the District 

upon completion of the contract”. Question: What is the proposed financial mechanism to be used by 

the District to achieve this facility ownership from the Vendor? 

 
Response: See response #15 
 

60. Page 16 of 43 – Section X, Item 5, Question:   If another location is used, it is stated that the facility 

would be under ownership of the District upon completion of the contract, does this include all 

stationary and mobile equipment and how would you handle the property if owned or leased?  Can the 

vendor include an end of contract buy out option to the District 

 
Response: See response #15 
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61. Page 16 of 43, Section X. Item 7: Question: Since it is deemed public information, could the District 

provide a representative invoice from the current contractors for each of the three material streams now 

received and handled by the two contractors providing your current services under the agreements 

provided in the RFP? 

 

Response: See Addendum 2 - Exhibit E 

 

62. Page 16 of 43, under Additional Information and Details:  If the District intends to own the Matzinger 

Road facility for the duration of a contract resulting from this procurement, are there costs associated 

with the facility that the District also will retain (e.g. structure itself, property taxes, utilities, paving, storm 

water drainage, traffic control, etc.)? 

 

Response: See response #15 

 

63. Page 16 of 43, under Additional Information and Details:  With only a 10-year contract being expected 

from this RFP process, is it reasonable for the District to specify that any new facility be relinquished by 

select vendor to District upon expiration of this contract? Does that include equipment inside the 

facility?  Are there any requirements as to final condition of such equipment or building structure? 

 

Response: See response #15 

 

64. Page 16 of 43, under Additional Information and Details:  Question: Will the selected vendor be issued 

guarantee that he will receive 100% of City/District-collected recyclables for the duration of the 

contract? 

 

Response: See response #13 and #16 and #17.  The District will fashion an agreement with the 

successful proposer, with terms and conditions that are mutually acceptable to all parties. 

 

65. Page 17 of 43 Item 13: Question: Since the current Distrct contract is short-term, why does this item 

imply no Vendor responsibility for District mixed fiber/paper processing during any period of the 10-year 

term?  

 

Response: See response #13 

 

66. Page 17 of 43 Item 14: This item implies Vendor responsibility; but the Vendor is not collecting the 

recyclables. Question: Therefore, what are the projected District and City increases in their annual 

processible material deliveries over the 10-year term of the proposed agreement under this RFP, and 

on what assumptions are these increases based?    

 

Response: See response # 16 

 

67. Page 17 of 43 Item 15: This item requests “....estimated projected tonnage of merchant 

recyclables....as host tons per year”.  Also, on Page 41 of 43 there is no mention of Merchant tonnages 

on Form 9 Vendor’s Pricing Proposal Forms but you do allude to Host Tons. Question: Since estimated 

tonnages are not guarantees, (1) how does the District intend to use this information in the evaluation 
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process, and (2) what is the intent of the District by referring to these as “host tons per year”, especially 

if the site were or were not at Matzinger Road? 

 

Response: See response #16 

 

68. Page 18 of 43 – Section X, Item 19, Question: Is this scale requirement currently in place and available 

for use by the Vendor at the 1011 Matzinger road facility even within the current contractor’s operational 

constraints? 

 

Response: See response #5. Proposer must address item 19. 

 

69. Page 26 of 43, Form 5 – Question: This Best Bid Criteria Form does not provide enough room for 

Vendor entries; how does the District want the form completed based upon the outline of information 

presented elsewhere in the RFP and the significant length of support materials to be provided by the 

Vendor? 

 

Response: Provide attachments to the Best Bid Criteria Form as deemed necessary.  

 

70. Page 41 of 43, Form 9 --- Will the District and the City be guaranteeing the annual flows of their 

recyclables for each of the ten years proposed for the term of this RFP Agreement? 

 

Response: The City single stream and District commingled bottles and cans will be dedicated to 

the MRF and the terms of the agreement will be to the satisfaction of all parties. 

 

71. Page 41 of 43, Form 9 --- Assuming the “main” solicitation is for processing of both District and City 

material, options 1 and 2 require pricing should their materials be split.  While a reasonable request, 

why isn’t an option available for vendor to handle just the fiber material from District drop-off center 

collection, in light of the Fondessy contract potentially ending December 31, 2014? 

 

Response: See response # 13 

 

72. Page 41 of 43, Form 9 --- With the District and City having the ability to contract separately for 

processing of their respective tonnages, responders to this RFP do not have any sense of volume that 

they will be expected to handle.  Again, a matrix or table should be offered to reflect pricing based on 

various tonnage ranges and material makeup. Consider this item a formal request for such a matrix.  

 

Response: See page 43 of the RFP 

 

73. Page 41 of 43 – The RFP states that the District and City are prepared to contract separately under 

Options 1 and 2 if needed. Question:  Can a lower cost option alternative proposal be presented? 

 

Response: Vendors are invited to provide alternate proposals.  

 

74. Page 43 of 43 – Question:  The titles of the columns show option 2 and option 3, should this be Option 

1 and Option 2 as on prior page? 
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Response: Yes, it is the intent that these be option 1 and 2. 
 

75. Attachment A – Question: To provide a level playing field, please provide the detailed financial 

invoices/reports from ReCommunity pertaining to the District-provided services, which clearly indicate 

the monthly tonnages and revenue paid to the City from this contract.   

 

Response: See response # 61 

 

76. Attachment A - Question: Is ReCommunity going to be allowed a “right of first refusal” before the City 

decides to secure the services of any other processing vendor? 

 

Response: See RFP Attachment A 

 

77. Attachment A - Question:  Is this the best available example of the likely contract details a vendor 

should expect if selected as processor via this solicitation? 

 

Response: The District will fashion an agreement with the successful proposer, with terms and 

conditions that are mutually acceptable to all parties. 

 

78. Referring to RFP Attachment D - Question: What criteria will be used by the District to decide on 

whether or not to extend the Fondessy contract after the initial term ends on December 31 of 2014?   

 

Response: The District will act in the best interest of the District. 

 

79. Referring to RFP Attachment D - Question: What assurance do RFP responders have that such criteria 

of the RFP will actually be used versus the possibility of the District attempting to re-negotiate with 

Fondessy based on pricing received through this solicitation? 

 

Response: This RFP process will stand on its on merit and the District will act in the best 

interest of the District. 

 

80. Referring to RFP Attachment D - Question: The RFP should provide detailed financial reports from 

Fondessy clearly indicating the monthly revenue paid to the District from this contract.  This data should 

be provided now as a RFP addendum. 

 

Response: See response # 61 

81. Referring to RFP Attachment D Question: The footer to this contract document states that it is a 

DRAFT.  Please provide FINAL version. 

 

Response: The version in the RFP is the FINAL version with label as DRAFT. 
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82. At the back of the RFP: the Fondessy Enterprises Agreement with the District for operation of the 

Districts MRF indicates that it runs through December 14, 2014. Different than the ReCommunity 

agreement, no early termination clause is noted unless the contractor was in Breach. Question: How 

will the District deal with this contractual situation vis-à-vis the date of operation requirement of the new 

contractor under the RFP requirements and the December 14, 2014 end-of-term date of Fondessy? 

 

Response: See response # 5 and #11 

 

83. Page 3 of 43 – I, Question:  What is the District’s definition of “host recyclables”?  

 

Response: See response #16 

 

84. Page 3 of 43, under Purpose:  What is the District plan in regards to “host recyclables”, i.e. is the 

District going to actively solicit for material or just position themselves to process whatever volume 

happens to be delivered to them?  

 

Response: See response # 16 

 

85. Page 4 of 43, Item II, last sentence: This sentence ends with the phrase “...at the District’s site.” 

Question: If the project to be “at the District’s site at 1011 Matzinger Road, or all other sites actually 

allowed as stated in the very first paragraph of Section I. Purpose? 

 

Response: District will entertain alternate sites located in Toledo Ohio 

 

86. Page 4 of 43, Item III, District responsibilities – Item 2 indicates that “The District and the City of Toledo 

will coordinate delivery of all of the City’s curbside single stream recyclables....to the site.” Question: 

This implies that the City will have the current private hauler used by the City for single stream 

recyclables (or whomever that might be as of December 15, 2012) bring all their collected materials to 

the new facility for processing; is that true? 

 

Response: See response # 9 

 

87. Page 4 of 43, Item IV, Project Scope and Term – Item 1 indicates “Effective no later than December 15, 

2012.....” Question: how can this date be achieved with another contractor located there at the same 

time under their own contract?  

 

Response: See response #11 

 

88. Page 4 of 43, under District Responsibilities:  In regards to hours of operation stated, is it a requirement 

of the District that each Vendor plan on providing sufficient staff available 7 days a week from 4am-

2pm?  These hours of operation seem peculiar in light of those typical of other MRF operations.  

Vendors are referred to Attachment B for tonnage data, but the data doesn’t differentiate between drop-

off center and dual-stream programs.  Since each of these components has drastically different 

contamination levels, the data needs to be clarified. 
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 Response: Dependent on vendor proposal. See page 43. 

 

89. Page 4 of 43, under District Responsibilities:  If the District is offering to make available all existing 

information, the minimum necessary requested of the District for the Vendor to prepare a reasonable 

response includes the following questions: 

a. Information on what effort(s) does the District is committed to taking in regards to educating the 

public, working with multi-family units and commercial establishments relative to expanding 

recycling efforts, and following the City’s lead toward a move to single-stream collection?  

b. Does the District plan on expanding its drop-off center presence or evolving to curbside recycling?  

If so, what is the timetable?   

c. What near-term actions or activities need to arise within the District to cause movement away from 

drop-off centers and the District’s extended implementation of curbside collection? 

 

Response: The District Solid Waste Plan as approved by the OEPA calls for drop-off 

infrastructure to be maintained and as well as providing assistance to encourage non-

subscription curbside recycling programs.  The most recent plan update is located on the Lucas 

County website. 

 

90. Page 4 of 43, under Project Scope and Term:  Question: Will the District or City have any input into 

what facility design the Vendor elects to use to process recyclables from these government entities? 

 

Response: No specific improvements are required. End result to be beneficial to all parties. 

 

91. Page 5 of 43, under Project Scope and Term, Item 7:  The list provided is stated to consist of the 

“minimum” items.  Questions:  

c. Who will be responsible for determining whether or not this list will expand?   

d. What if vendor determines that an item or items on this list cannot be processed cost-effectively; can 

item be removed?   

e. Will #3-#7 plastics be limited to plastic containers or will swimming pool liners, plastic furniture, vinyl 

siding, etc be allowed?  

f. Will there be a size limit on household scrap metal?   

g. Will coat hangers be allowed?   

h. Will plastic bags be allowed to contain any of the identified items?  

i. Will bags of plastic bags be considered acceptable?  

 

Response: Expansion of acceptable material streams will be dictated by each respective 

proposal. 

 

92. Page 4 of 43, under Project Scope and Term, Item 7: Questions:  

j. Is the 6% contamination level one that the District commits to ensuring relative to delivered loads or 

the maximum level allowed from MRF operations?   

k. If the latter (that is, the maximum level), how can a vendor be held to that standard if material on the 

receiving end is contaminated at far higher levels?   



20 

l. What would be the consequences of vendor failing to meet this standard?  Will there be no 

differentiation on this contamination level based on the % of single-stream material being delivered to 

the processing facility?   

m. How will the District drop-off centers be kept minimally contaminated, or won’t the District commit to 

any such cleanliness standard? 

 

Response: 6% represents estimated trash and other prohibited materials to account for. 

 

93. Page 5 of 43, Item IV, Project Scope and Term, Point 7. Bullet Point No. 2 --- Question: What is meant 

by the term “Favorable consideration” and how will that be evaluated in the numerical awards of the 

selection process? 

 

Response: The District/City will act in each party’s best interest.  

 

94. Page 5 of 43 –   Item 7 Question:  Please define “other household scrap metal” 

 

Response: This is open for vendor to propose.  There is no set criteria for defining in the RFP. 

 

95. Page 6 of 43 – Question:  Does the term “similar work” relate to recycling processing and /or handling in 

general, or to the processing of the specific commodities. Also, does it extend to the individuals 

involved in performing the required services? 

 

Response: See response #6 and #10 

 

96. Page 7 of 43, Item VI, Stage 1 Review: Question: In the third bullet point, could you please clarify that 

location of the “....minimum qualifications outlined in the Request for Proposals”. 

 

Response: See response #6 and #10 

 

97. Page 7 of 43, Item VI, Stage 1 Review --- bottom of page, bolded sentence that reads “Submissions 

which do not meet all of the above first stage review submission requirements will be deemed 

“Non-Qualified” and will not be reviewed for Stage 2. Question: Is not the Stage 1 evaluation a 

“points-based evaluation”? Some of the previous 11 bullet points are presented as point-awarding 

criteria to see if the vendor can accumulate 55 of the 70 points. However this statement reads as if the 

evaluation is a pass-fail evaluation. Could your proposal evaluation process please be more clearly 

defined to eliminate this apparent inconsistency?  

 

Response: See response #6 and #10 

 

98. Page 8 of 43 – Section VI, Question:  In Stage 1, the evaluation process, will any points be awarded to 

a local tax paying company vs. an out of County or out of State company? 

 

Response: See response #6 and #10 
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99. Page 8 of 43, Item VI, Stage 2 Review states that it is limited to 4 items. The initial 3 [of these 4 items] 

at the top of Page 8 of 43 are more related to either you provided the information or not, versus an item 

for relative comparison versus whatever the other vendors submitted. However, the fourth item relates 

to the net benefit (net cost and/or revenues) and is definitely a “comparison item” for review versus the 

other vendors, Question: How does the District envision splitting up the points for these 4 evaluation 

items that now total 30 points? What is your approach for the determining how the Net Benefit points 

will be awarded based on the different vendors cost submittals, especially with the Net Benefit item 

being the key cost item of each Stage 2 proposal? 

 

Response: See response #6 and #10 

 

100. Page 8 of 43, Item VI, last paragraph regarding the award by the Board of Commissioners is under 

the Stage 2 review section with no new heading – Question: is the “Maximum Points earned” as stated 

therein only for the Stage 2 cost proposal points, since all vendors that have made it to the Stage 2 

opening have earned at least 55 points, and thus could be deemed capable and experienced enough to 

do the project as defined by the District RFP?  

 

Response: Review process is in two stages. 

 

101. Page 8 of 43, Item VII, end of first paragraph states “....will compel Vendors to provide the most 

effective solution with the Vendor’s investment in a single stream facility in the City of Toledo.” 

Question: Has the District and/or the City actually studied the flows and marketplace to justify such a 

statement? If so, can that information be made available to the potential Vendors so it may be 

considered in our proposal? 

 

Response: See page 41, first bullet. 

 

102. Page 8 of 43, Item VII, end of last paragraph alludes to “projected volumes”. Question: Does the 

District and the City have an estimate of the future “projected volumes”, which is most helpful if 

presented as tonnages, which may be considered in our proposal? 

 

Response: See response # 13 and #16 

 

103. Pages 10 through 12 of 43, re: Insurance--- In the RFP, these three pages of Insurance 

Requirements are to be provided by the Vendor but the District contract with Fondessy (noted in the 

RFP as attachment D) for similar services signed in January 2010 only has on page 5 of 22 in Section 7 

four main insurance requirements. Also, the City of Toledo July 2010 agreement with ReCommunity 

only has one sentence on Page 4 about Insurance and treats it as a general responsibility-type 

requirement based on the roles and responsibilities.  Question: Has something happened to the District 

or the County that has been the reason to significantly increase the insurance requirements for this 

particular RFP? 

 

Response: Insurance requirements are proposed as recommended by the County Risk 

Management Department.  Specific terms shall be negotiated in the final terms of the agreement.   

 



22 

104. Page 10 of 43 – D, Question:  If key positions will not be filled until award, should we use title in 

place of person’s name? 

 

Response: Yes and Indicate position as unfilled. Proposer is responsible for clarity. 
 

105. Page 13 of 43, under Project Understanding:  How are vendors supposed to indicate their 

understanding of project goals when the RFP fails to identify and commit to District goals? 

 

Response: See response # 10 

 

106. Page 13 of 43, under Project Understanding:  How are vendors to supply an Activity Schedule 

without knowing when the Start Work date will be and what tonnage will be made available? 

 

Response: December 15,2012 was selected as the target start date. Vendor may propose 

alternatives.  See response #7 and consider providing a gant chart with project milestones. 

 

107. Page 14 of 43 Item 6 References. Question: Please clarify if three references are for the Vendor, in 

total, or are you requesting three references for any and all “key personnel” identified in the Proposal. 

This project will include design, general construction, equipment selection, construction management 

and start-up, facility operations, product marketing, etc. Since there are many aspects of this project, if 

four or more key personnel are noted for the different phases of the project, are you really asking for 

say, 12 references (three references for four people), or just three references for the entire Vendor 

team? 

 

Response: See response # 10. References are used to demonstrate the project team’s previous 

successful engagements. 

 

108. Page 15 of 43 Item 2 at the top of page relative to the Page 20 of 43 Personal Property Tax 

Statement Form. Question: As part of the proposal, must each sub-Vendor also complete the tax 

statement form noted, or can a letter from each proposed sub-Vendor satisfy this personal property tax 

requirement? 

 

Response: Proposers shall be responsible for ensuring sub-Vendors comply with requirements. 

109. Page 16 of 43, under Additional Information and Details:  Question: For cost-effective operations, 

why can’t the City and District work the same weekly collection schedule? 

 

Response: Schedules remain as stated. 

 

110. Page 16 of 43, under Additional Information and Details:  It will be tough to define how residue will 

actually be handled over a 10-yr contract lifespan given the fact that additional items may be added and 

given the drastically different market conditions that have existed over the past half dozen years. 

Question: Besides the Vendor saying “disposed of in a state approved landfill” for example, does the 

District have any additional issues that this item is trying to force the Vendor address?  
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Response: Residue must be disposed of in a landfill “designated” by the District. 

 

111. Page 18 of 43 – Section X, Item 20, Question:   Is the residue from recyclables required to be 

disposed of in-district?  If not, are evaluation points awarded if the district is able to receive fees 

associated with the residue from recyclables? 

 

Response:  Residue must be disposed of in a landfill “designated” by the District. 

 

112. Page 18 of 43 – Section X, Item 21, Question:  Is this necessary if the additional material is related 

to host recyclables and not the City of Toledo or District recyclables? 

 

Response: The District desires to identify additional material streams that will help the District 
satisfy OEPA mandated diversion goals. 

 

113. Question: Page 21 of 22 of the Fondessy Agreement, titled Exhibit C, gives the impression a Form 

of Letter of Credit or Performance Bond was executed. If an LOC or Bond were executed by this 

company, could the District please provide a copy of same?    

  

Response: See Addendum 2 – Exhibit F showing the annual performance bond as provided by 

Fondessy Enterprises 

 

114. Referring to RFP Attachment D - Question: What proportion (%) of the annual contract amount 

does the $75,000 surety represent (Section 4.6.1)? 

 

Response: Depends on market conditions. 

 

115. Regarding Exhibit A:  Question: What equipment, if any, will remain at the Matzinger Road facility 

for use by the new vendor selected via this procurement? 

 

Response: See response #5 and #11 

 

116. Regarding Exhibit A:  Question: Since the Matzinger Road facility will remain owned by the District, 

what amount of property or personal tax is expected to be the obligation of the selected new vendor? 

 

Response: This is likely related to the actual portion of the improvements and should be 

considered in the proposal. 

 

117. Regarding Exhibit A:  Question: The definition of “Operating Days” appears to conflict with the 

hours specified earlier for receipt of material from both the City and the District? 

 

Response: May be dictated by Vendor’s proposal. 

 

118. Regarding Exhibit A, Section 3.4.3, Question: Can any clarification be offered by the District 

concerning allowing the new contractor to ‘downgrade’, versus out-and-out load reject, when 
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contamination levels in delivered materials are determined by MRF operator to exceed contractual 

limits? 

 

Response: May be dictated by Vendor’s proposal. 

 

119. Regarding Exhibit A, Section 3.4.4, and Question: does the District hold the right to essentially 

terminate deliveries with a simple 30-day notice? 

 

Response: See response # 17. 

 

120. Regarding Exhibit A, Section 3.4.5.2, and Question: Can the District offer clarification assuring that 

plastic swimming pool liners, plastic lumber, vinyl siding, etc are excluded from what the vendor is 

expected to accept. The word ‘container’ should be stressed. 

 

Response: Proposal shall include a list of acceptable and non-acceptable material streams 

while considering the items listed in the RFP.  
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Year Constructed: 1966, 1983 and 1997 
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Ken Marciniak, SIOR – ext. 6302

kmarciniak@signatureassociates.com
Joe Rutherford – ext. 6323

jrutherford@signatureassociates.comwww.signatureassociates.com 
 

 

Real Estate Taxes as of 2006: 
 
TD: 22 
Parcels: 80611 and 80617 
Assessor Numbers:  02-917-039 and 040 
 
Total Annual Taxes: $14,928.80 

Remarks: 
 
 Former 7,600 sf cross dock facility located

on a heavy haul route.  
 
 Later additions include a 10,000 square foot

building with 4 drive-in doors and an 8,000
sf warehouse building added on to cross
dock.  

 
 Site has a 575’ rail spur. 

 
 Recycling equipment and an 80,000 lb truck

scale available for sale.  

General Building Specifications: 
 
Office Space: 3,600 square feet 
Manufacturing/Warehouse: 25,200 square feet
Exterior Walls: Concrete block, brick and  
   metal siding 
Structural System: Steel beam 
Floors: Concrete 
Basement: No 
Power:  400 amp/277/480V/3 phase 
Security System:  Yes 
Sprinklers:  No 
Signage:  Facia 
Rail:  Yes 
Cranes: No 
Floor Drains: No 

Utilities: 
 
Electric – Toledo Edison 
Gas – Columbia Gas 
Water – City of Toledo 
Sanitary Sewer – City of  Toledo 
Storm Sewer – City of Toledo 

Building Information: 
 
Current Occupants: Lake Erie Recycling 
Occupancy Date:  Upon Closing 
 
Sign on Property:  Yes 
Key Available: No- shown by appointment 

INDUSTRIAL BUILDING  
  FOR SALE 
 
1011 MATZINGER ROAD 
TOLEDO, OH  43612 

The information contained herein is from sources deemed reliable, but no warranty or representation is made as to accuracy thereof.  It is subject to correction of
errors, omissions, change of price prior to sale or withdrawal from market, all without notice.  Further, no warranty or representation is made in regard to any
environmental condition that may or may not exist.   
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For more information, contact: 419/249-7070
Ken Marciniak, SIOR – ext. 6302

kmarciniak@signatureassociates.com
Joe Rutherford – ext. 6323

jrutherford@signatureassociates.com
 

www.signatureassociates.com 
 

INDUSTRIAL BUILDING  
  FOR SALE 
 
1011 MATZINGER ROAD 
TOLEDO, OH  43612 

The information contained herein is from sources deemed reliable, but no warranty or representation is made as to accuracy thereof.  It is subject to correction of
errors, omissions, change of price prior to sale or withdrawal from market, all without notice.  Further, no warranty or representation is made in regard to any
environmental condition that may or may not exist.   

Office Specifications: 
 
Office Space:  3,600 sf  (1,800 sf per floor) 
Roof:  Flat 
Floor Coverings:  Carpet and vinyl tile 
Ceiling Height:  8’ 
Heating: Gas forced air 
Air Conditioning: Central  
Restrooms:  2 per floor 
First Floor Features:   Employee break room  
   and storage areas 
Second Floor Features:  6 offices including  
   Weighmaster office Office Reception Area 

Office Scale Room Office Conference Room 
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INDUSTRIAL BUILDING  
  FOR SALE 
 
1011 MATZINGER ROAD 
TOLEDO, OH  43612 

The information contained herein is from sources deemed reliable, but no warranty or representation is made as to accuracy thereof.  It is subject to correction of
errors, omissions, change of price prior to sale or withdrawal from market, all without notice.  Further, no warranty or representation is made in regard to any
environmental condition that may or may not exist.   

Shop Building #1 Specifications: 
 
Shop Space:  7,600 sf cross dock and 8,000 sf  
   warehouse 
Roof: Metal 
Ceiling Height:  8’ to 16’ 
Heating: Ceiling unit heater 
Air Conditioning: None 
Lighting:  Metal halide  
Restrooms:  None 
Overhead Door: 5 doors – 1 each 10’ x 17’,  
   12’ x 12’, 10’ x 16’ and 2 – 12’ x 16’ 
Truck Well/Dock:  5 - 8’ x 8’.  Potential exists 
   for an additional 7+ docks to be reinstalled.   

Ramp leading from Building 1  
Warehouse to Cross Dock Area 

Building 1 Warehouse Area Dock High Door Area 
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INDUSTRIAL BUILDING  
  FOR SALE 
 
1011 MATZINGER ROAD 
TOLEDO, OH  43612 

The information contained herein is from sources deemed reliable, but no warranty or representation is made as to accuracy thereof.  It is subject to correction of
errors, omissions, change of price prior to sale or withdrawal from market, all without notice.  Further, no warranty or representation is made in regard to any
environmental condition that may or may not exist.   

Shop Building #2 Specifications: 
 
Shop Specs:  10,000 sf (100’ x 100’) 
Building Type: Warehouse 
Roof: Metal 
Floors: 6” reinforced concrete 
Ceiling Height:  28’ to 30’ 
Heating: None 
Air Conditioning: None 
Restrooms:  None 
Overhead Door: 4 – 16’ x 16’ with openers 
Truck Well/Dock:  No 
Building Features:   
 2 floor scales 
 Concrete bollards at all doors 
 Expansive concrete apron surrounds

building  
 Metal halide lighting 

575’ Rail Spur 
Employee Lockers and Break Room

Building 2 
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Survey Prepared for L. Ke.v',1'\ LitHe -t Jac<Lue!ineLift-Ie. It
Pod' Lavvrer\ce TIt-Ie 0(Trust Co. ...

Society NqtlotlQl~"k of Part of the Northwest

quarter of Section 18, Town 9 South, Range

8 East, In The City of Toledo, luca's County,
Ohio.

LEGAL De5CRWTION

EamU: That p.artof Ih. oorthw..11/4 or S.<lIo.18, Town 9 South, Rani. 8
East, in the Cily ofTol.do, Lucas County, Obio, bound.d and described as foUows:

B.iinnini al a point on the ce.l.r Une of Matzlnl.r Road, thai Is 301.89 f.et
southwest.rly of il.l int.rsection' ..lib the west.rlylin. of the Ana Arbor Rallrond
Company Riibl of WaYith northwest.rly al ncht 80gles 10 lb. ..nt.r Iin. of
Matzlnl.r Road, a dIstan.. of 545.16 feel 10 lb. soulh.rly nlhl of W"ylin. ofTh.
Tol.do T.rmlnal RaUroad; th.n.. west.rly alonl the south.rly nibl of waJ Iin. of
Th. Tol.do T.rmlnal Railroad 10lb. point ofilil.rs..tion wltb" Iin. drawn al rlIbl
J.Dlles from a point on tbe eenter l1Qe or MatzWeer Road, that is 160 feet
southwest.rly of the poinl of b.Iinninl. Ib..c. soutb.ast.rly alonl said last
describ.d Iin. 610 f.et plus or minus to the ""nl.r Iin. or Matzlnler Roadi th.nce
northeast.rly alonl the said cenl.r Iin. or Matzlnl.r Road 160 f..llo lb. point of
b.Iinninl.

fat:tdll: Thai part of Ih. nortbwest 1/4 of Sectioa 18, To... 9 Soulh, Raul. 8
East, In the City of Toledoi 'Luers CuuntYi.Obio, bounded and described as tollows:"

B.Iinninl al a point on tha ..ot.r line of Matzlnl.r Road, tbal Is 461.89 fe.t
southwest.rly of 11.1Int.rsectlo. with tb. west.rlylin. of the Ann Arbor RoadraU
Company nibt of way! lb nortbwest.rly at nchl aOlles 10 the ..nl.r Iin. of
Matzlni.r Road, a distance or 610 r..1 plus or minus 10 tb. southerly nchl of woy
Iin. of Th. Tol.do T.rmlnal RaUroadi Ib.n.. westerly aloog the SDulb.rly rlcht of
"ay Iin. of Th. Tol<d4 TermIDoJRaUroad 10 the polnl of Int.rsectlon wllb a Une
drawn al rlibl andes from a point on th. c.nl.r line of Mataing.r Road thai Is 140
feet southwesterly of the polnl of b.Iinnin'i thence southeast.rlJ aloo, said last
described Iin., a dlstan.. of 145.11 feel to lb. c.nler Iin. of Matzln,.r Road. th.nce
northeast.rly alonl tb. ..nt.r Iin. of Malzlnger Road, a dJstanc. of 140 r..llo the
polnl of b.ginning. Subjecllo I.gal hIghways.
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SURVEYOR'SCERTIFICATION

The Undersigned hereby cenifles to .h.KF:i.l!:LWTTlE A~ JAC~I)~\iI"l. ~II HE t
2..Q.f!.tlf. NATIONAL~~.~ _ that the drawing herein is r~pre5anla1iv~ of a truC and
accurate survey made by the undersJQned; that the p'~mi!i!~:iwere CStablished hy
actual field measurements; that monuments were fOlJlldanel SuI hCf(!on; and (O(llall
propenies surveyed and described on the aUachcd duscriplioils ilh) contiguous alung
their entire common boundaries and aro enclosed withul llm periult::tcrs tllercen.

Further, I cerlify that the right-ot-way line far the Toledo Ti!((n\I\C!UliillHHlcl~
~ is completelycontiguousto the Northerlyparl/nettHlineof tlIP.premises alol1g
the entireparcel. I

Further, I certify that no improvements on the premises ill questIOn encrOach
over (he property lines of Ihe premises in question; Ihut nu improvcmonts on
property other than the premises in Question encroach onto the premis~s in .question;
and that no improvements t?n Jhe premises in question unr;rucu:non the €H1SUl!lI,mts
as shown In title number :[!:!J1.IF_-:38U1':>

Andfurther.I certify Ihat thore are no buildill()Snor SlfllCllJfP.Sul any kind; nor
monuments. Iron pins, encroachment, nor easements (Hi :I:.!I;r~st01mV knowledge)
located on said property other than thO'ie flhove.
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I herebycertify that (he parcel 01 land
described hereon is in ZONEC, which is not
in a special tload hazard area as described in
FIRM. Flood Insurance Tare Map 3953/30010 C.
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Lucas County Solid Waste District Reimbursement for January 2012

January 1 - 31, 2012

News 349.314 tons - yellow sheet $85.00 - $52.00 = $33.00 X 85% X 349.314 $9,798.15

OCC 232.876 tons - yellow sheet $95.00 - $52.00 = $43.00 X 85% X 232.88 $8,511.77

B/C 213.8 tons X $.00 =  $-   

Other 15.62 tons X $4.00 = $62.48

Total rebate for January 2012 $18,372.40

Equipment Lease Payment $2,500.00

Total $20,872.40
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Lucas County Solid Waste District Reimbursement for December 2011

December 1 - 31, 2011

News 0 tons - yellow sheet $85.00 - $51.00 = $34.00 X 85% X 456.03 13,179.27$ 

OCC 0 tons - yellow sheet $95.00 - $51.00 = $44.00 X 85% X 304.02 11,370.35$ 

B/C 253.22 tons X $.00 = -$            

Other 19.81 tons X $4.00 = 79.24$        

Total rebate for December 2011 24,628.86$ 

Equipment Lease Payment 2,500.00$   

Total 27,128.86$ 



Lucas County Solid Waste District Reimbursement for November 2011

November 1 - 30, 2011

News - 384.62 tons  - yellow sheet $100.00 - $51.00 = $49.00 x $.85 x 384.62tons = $16,09.43

OCC - 256.41 tons - yellow sheet $110.00 - $51.00 = $59.00 x $.85 x  256.41 tons = $12,858.97

B/C - 220.42 tons x $.00  =  $0.00

Other - 14.38 tons x $4.00 = $57.52

Total rebate for November 2011 $28,935.92

Equipment Lease Payment - $2,500.00

Total            $31,435.92
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